

Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, May 15, 2013 3:00 pm Teleconference

> Toll free **1.877.394.5901** Local 416/905 **1.416.548.6023** Participant code: **9243517**#

	Name	Region/College	Term	
1.	Rick Helman	East, Loyalist	2009	2013
2.	Rob Kardas	West, Lambton	2010	2013
3.	David Belford	West, Fanshawe	2011	2014
4.	Alanna McDonell	East, Algonquin	2011	2014
5.	Susan Atkinson	Central, Sheridan	2010	2013
6.	Bridget Woodcock	Central, Humber	2012	2015
7.	Krista Pearson	North, Sault	2012	2015
8.	Jane Cooper	West, Mohawk	2012	2015
9.	Chris Fliesser (Past President)	West, Fanshawe	2009	2013
10.	Greg Murphy	East, Durham	2012	2015
11.	Chantal Thiboutot	East, La Cité Collégiale	2011	2014
12.	Riley Burton	North, Confederation	2011	2014

Time	Agenda Item #	Agenda Item	Resources
3:00 pm	1.	Call to Order/Introductions/getting organized Chair: Rick Helman, President	
	2.	Approval of the Agenda	
	3.	Approval of the Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2013.	Draft Meeting Minutes (sent as a separate file)
3:15 pm	4.	President's Report	
3:25 pm	5.	<ul> <li>Policy Discussion:         <ul> <li>Strategic initiative: Memorandum of Understanding with Colleges – for initial discussion</li> <li>Bylaw Amendments - confirm with motion to take to membership</li> <li>Membership Policy Statement – direction for future categories</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	<ul> <li>MOU Position Paper</li> <li>Draft Bylaws</li> </ul>
3:45 pm	6.	Committee Reports & Discussion – Diane & Committee Chair	Committee Reports
4:15 pm	7.	2012 Financials – Audited Statements Motion to approve and recommend to AGM	Draft Audited Statements
	8.	Membership Update - <i>Diane</i>	Membership Report
4:25 pm	9.	Nominations:     • Still receiving for board vacancies; one nomination is in from Centennial college     • Officers for 2013/2014	
	10.	Administration: Next meeting date	
4:30 pm	11.	Adjournment	

#### CONFIDENTIAL

## Memo to the Executive Committee From Diane Posterski, Executive Director

For discussion purposes only - not for distribution.

#### Question: If OCASA folded today, who would care?

Sounds harsh, doesn't it? But I think that in achieving sustainability, we need to ask this question. It's also the question that membership experts suggest organizations ask of themselves – it helps to clarify purpose and strategic direction.

#### Maybe a better question is:

### What should OCASA "look like" to sustain itself and its mission for the next decade?

I have been doing some work on better developing our member value proposition following some PD I have attended this winter. This is essential under any circumstance. Here, I'm focusing on OCASA's relationship to the college system which is a critical backdrop to all that we do.

Here are the key issues for OCASA after being in the system for 17 years:

1. OCASA has to repeatedly educate the system, college employees, new senior management (Presidents, VPs, Executive Directors), and new/old hires about what OCASA is, what it does, and what value it brings. And the offering must be unique. And at 24 colleges.

It's true that all organizations have to market themselves, and prove their worth. But I think we spend too much time, or rather too little for what is needed, declaring what has already been decided: OCASA is the recognized voice for administration staff and has a valid/important place in the system. (I wonder if OCASA is part of the new Board governance training put on by Colleges Ontario?).

2. Those in HR sometimes compromise our message.

Anecdotally, I hear about new hires being given information about OCASA at point of hire with a statement like, "you don't need this, but here you go", or "I'm not a member". I've also heard recently about support staff 4 or 5 layers down the hierarchy declaring that the active ASA can no longer present at new staff orientation, as they always have in the past. Says who? So now with new ASA reps, the climb starts again.

We also know it is sometimes hard to get lists of new hires, and who can really track it anyway? A very busy OCASA member who is the sole champion at a very large college? Not a chance.

- 3. Even where a college president might be "on board" it doesn't mean that the executive team or managers below are also on board. Operationally, it sometimes makes little difference.
  - OCASA's role and function can be diminished at a college greatly by individuals who don't "buy-in". A neutral stance isn't particularly helpful either.
- 4. Recruitment efforts need to be doubled in the next few years if we are to just stay above board.
  - The retirement wave is already hitting OCASA. Even with a complimentary membership for new hires, building awareness is a challenge across 24 institutions.
- 5. Traditional models for membership are shifting. People's access to information, networks, and training is virtually unlimited.

OCASA's value proposition has to be ever sharper and relevant moving forward. We do a great conference, but are weak on developing the network and providing the go-to source for support and information.

Traditional models of information flow to and from members are also shifting: clusters, funnels, networks all describe new ways for people to connect and drive an organization.

#### **Recommendations:**

That the OCASA Board consider a review of OCASA's relationship to the college system - think "outside of the box" to explore future opportunities.

#### **Examples:**

a. OCASA might propose and negotiate a Memorandum of Understanding with CoP ("the system") that outlines OCASA's role, its purpose, access to all administrators, and its partnership in providing resources and support to administrative staff. This strategy would require careful research and consultation.

The outcome would be an agreement that provides education and information to all relevant college employees, ensures OCASA access to administrators and free and equal opportunity to join - perhaps even an "opt-out" option at hire.

OCASA might also make some requests about having "a piece of the pie". We can develop PD offerings but without system support or endorsement, we will continue to struggle. For example, why shouldn't OCASA be the arm that provides certification to new admin hires?

b. Even before this, OCASA might engage its key partners in this very question: what role should OCASA play and can it have a permanent place in the college system structure? With unquestioned support? Have we ever invited their commentary on this?

OCASA might host a round table with Linda Franklin, 2 or 3 presidents, Don Sinclair, maybe some senior level members (VP) and HRCC reps. I would see a process that would support innovation and frank discussion about OCASA's future. I would also see Linda Franklin as the door into this discussion with CoP. In this conversation, we might identify unexpected obstacles, and unexpected opportunities. Could be interesting.

### **Updates**

Since first drafting this paper (early April), I have informally floated the idea of a formal MOU with a variety of people (two HR executives, Don Sinclair, OCASA members) and the response is consistently positive – it might help, and it certainly couldn't hurt. We can also declare our non-union status as the permanent state.

I have also consulted with our lawyer who is gathering other examples of similar MOUs to provide some precedence and best practice.

This needs to be managed well – careful to include pertinent stakeholders and with a clear, communications strategy. I would see this evolving over the next 12 months.

The current bylaws review could incorporated a statement about OCASA being a non-union right now.

#### Notes to Board of Directors for May 15, 2013 meeting:

The following bylaws are the clean version following amendments made by the lawyer, in consultation with the Governance Committee and the Executive Director.

#### You will notice some additional red markings, which reflect the following:

- 1. one necessary correction under 1. Definitions, removing (j) Supporters (with revisions around membership described below, this should have been omitted)
- 2. and a point for discussion by the Board: insertion of "interpretation" (e) all activities are consistent with a non-union mandate and membership;

#### Amendments to the bylaws reflect the following key areas:

- 1. General clean up of language, grammar, format;
- 2. Amending clauses that seem outdated in language and procedure, making them more consistent with best practice;
- 3. Amendments in preparation for the new Ontario Incorporation Act, particularly around classes of membership for voting purposes. After much review, the final decision is to move definitions of associate and retiree membership to a Membership Policy document, which can be amended, from time as needed by the Board of Directors. This ensures that we have only one voting class as defined in the bylaws (full voting membership, actively employed in OCAAT full-time, part-time or contract.)



# ONTARIO COLLEGE ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF ASSOCIATION

# Amended BY-LAW 1

Amended June 25, 2013

i

#### **Table of Contents**

	ra	ige
1.	Definitions	1
2.	Interpretation	2
3.	Head Office	
4.	Seal	
5.	Duties and Number	
6.	Qualifications	
7.	First Directors	
8.	Term	
9.	Election	4
10.	Nomination of Directors	4
	Vacancies	
12.	Executive Committee	5
13.	Other Committees	6
14.	Remuneration of Directors	6
	Responsibilities of the Board	
	Place of Meeting	
	Notice	
18.	Error or Omission in Giving Notice	8
19.	Adjournment	7
	Regular Meetings	
21.	Quorum	8
22.	Voting	9
23.	Telephone Participation	9
24.	Administer Affairs	9
25.	Expenditure	9
26.	Borrowing Power	9
27.	Fees and Fund Raising	9
28.	Agents and Employees	10
29.	Remuneration of Agents and Employees	10
30.	Appointment	10
31.	Vacancies	11
32.	Remuneration of Officers	11
	Removal of Officers	
34.	Duties of Officers may be Delegated	11
	Current Offices and Powers and Duties	
	For the Protection of Directors and Officers	
	Indemnities to Directors and Others	
38.	Conflict of Interest	14
	Submission of Contracts or Transactions to Members for Approval	
	Classes of Members and Eligibility	
	Application for Membership	

42. Resignation	17
43. Termination of Membership or Supporter Status:	17
44. Annual Meeting	17
45. Other Meetings	18
46. Notice	
47. Waiver of Notice	18
48. Error or Omission in Giving Notice	17
49. Quorum	19
50. Chairperson of the Meeting	
51. Adjournment	19
52. Voting of Members	19
53. Proxies	20
54. Voting Shares and Securities	20
55. Custody of Securities	19
56. Execution of Instruments	21
57. Service	20
58. Signature to Notices	22
59. Computation of Time	22
60. Proof of Service	
61. Auditors	23
62. Financial Year	23
63. Enactment, Repeal and Amendment of By-laws and Special Resolutions	23
64. Rules of Order	23

#### BY-LAW 1

being the General By-law of

#### ONTARIO COLLEGE ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF ASSOCIATION

(hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation")

#### INTERPRETATION

#### 1. Definitions

In this By-law, unless the context otherwise specifies or requires:

- (a) "Act" means the Corporations Act, R.S.O., chap. C. 38 and its regulations as from time to time amended and every successor statute and regulations that may be substituted therefore and, in the case of such substitution, any references in the By-laws of the Corporation to provisions of the Act shall be read as references to the substituted provisions therefore in the new statute or statutes;
- (b) "Board" or "Board or Directors" means the Board of the Directors of the Corporation;
- (c) "By-law" means any By-law of the Corporation from time to time in force and effect;
- (d) Corporation" means the Ontario College Administrative Staff Association, incorporated without share capital by Letters Patent dated September 30, 2008;
- (e) "Director" means a duly elected and qualified person who holds office on the Board of Directors;
- (f) "Letters Patent" means the Letters Patent and any supplementary letters patent of the Corporation;
- (g) "Member" shall mean a person admitted to registered membership of the Corporation pursuant to Article 40;
- (h) "Ontario College of Applied Arts and Technology" or "OCAAT" shall mean those colleges of applied arts and technology which are established from time to time

PAGE 1

pursuant to the *Ontario Colleges of Applied Arts and Technology Act*, 2002 S.O. 2002, ch.8, as amended from time to time, and shall include without limiting any of the foregoing those institutions that meet the designation of Institute of Technology and Advanced Learning;

 "Region" means any one of the four areas into which the province is subdivided by OCAAT and into which the colleges are aligned, namely the Northern, Western, Eastern, and Central Regions;

#### 2. Interpretation

This By-law shall be, unless the context otherwise requires, construed and interpreted in accordance with the following:

- (a) all terms which are contained in the By-laws of the Corporation and which are defined in the Act shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Act;
- (b) words importing the singular member only shall include the plural and vice versa; and the word "person" shall include bodies corporate, corporations, companies, partnerships, syndicates, trusts and any number or aggregate of persons;
- (c) the headings used in the By-laws are inserted for reference purposes only and are not to be considered or taken into account in construing the terms or provisions thereof or to be deemed in any way to clarify, modify or explain the effect of any such terms or provisions;
- (d) the Corporation is established primarily for the purpose of furthering the professional interests and activities of administrators who are employed or were formerly employed by OCAAT and who are otherwise eligible for membership in the Corporation;
- (e) all activities are consistent with a non-union mandate and membership;
- (f) this By-law and all other constating documents shall be translated into French in the event of any inconsistency in the versions, the English shall prevail.

#### 3. Head Office

The head office of the Corporation shall be located in Napanee, Ontario. This location is subject to change by special resolution of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

**Author** 

**Deleted:** (j) . "Supporter" shall mean a person admitted to the categories set out in Section

Autnor

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Author

Deleted: This

#### 4. Seal

The seal, an impression of which is stamped in the margin hereof, shall be the seal of the Corporation.

#### **DIRECTORS**

#### 5. Duties and Number

The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors comprised of 12. The Board of Directors shall be elected as set out in Article 9 below.

#### 6. Qualifications

Every Director shall be eighteen (18) or more years of age and shall be a Member of the Corporation, and no undischarged bankrupt shall become or continue as a Director.

#### 7. First Directors

The applicants for incorporation shall become the first Directors of the Corporation whose term of office on the Board of Directors shall continue until their successors are elected, or appointed in accordance with Article 9 herein.

#### 8. Term

Directors shall be appointed for a term of three (3) years, commencing at the commencement of the annual meeting at which the appointment of such individuals to the Board of Directors is to be effective, provided that at the first meeting of the Members, at which time the Board of Directors shall be elected, the term of office for such first Board of Directors shall be as follows:

- (a) One-third (1/3) of the Directors shall be elected for a term of one (1) year;
- (b) One-third (1/3) of the Directors shall be elected for a term of two (2) years;
- (c) One-third (1/3) of the Directors shall be elected for a term of three (3) years.

No Director shall be eligible to serve more than two consecutive terms, except in the case of a Past President who may hold office during the term of his or her successor. A member who has served two consecutive terms shall not be eligible to serve again as a Director before the passing of at least three years.

#### 9. Election

The members of the Board of 12 shall be:

i. the immediate Past President;

- ii. Two (2) Directors from each of the current four (4) Regions. Such Directors must have their primary residence or workplace in the Region they serve and must be actively employed at an OCAAT; and
- iii. 3 Directors at large, which may include one Retiree.

Directors shall be elected by a majority of the voting Members in attendance personally at the annual general meeting of the Corporation or by proxy in the manner set out in these By-laws and as required by the Act. The election of Directors shall be conducted by secret ballot. The candidate or candidates with the largest number of votes shall fill Director vacancies where the number of candidates exceeds the number of vacancies filled.

#### 10. Nomination of Directors

Nominations for vacant Director positions shall be submitted in writing to the Chair of the committee responsible for nominations at least 30 days in advance of the meeting at which the vote is to be held. It shall contain the signature of two Members of the corporation in good standing and a signed acceptance of the nomination by the nominee.

#### 11. Vacancies

The office of a Director shall automatically be vacated:

- (a) if the Director ceases to be a Member of the Corporation;
- (b) if the Director becomes bankrupt or suspends payment of debts generally or compounds with creditors or makes an authorized assignment or is declared insolvent:
- if the Director is found to be a mentally incompetent person or becomes of unsound mind;
- (d) if the Director by notice in writing to the Corporation resigns office which resignation shall be effective at the time it is received by the Secretary of the Corporation or at the time specified in the notice, whichever is later;
- (e) if at a special meeting of members, a resolution is passed by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the members at the special meeting removing the Director before the expiration of the Director's term of office; or
- (f) if the Director dies.

Any vacancy in a Director position, however caused, may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors so long as quorum of Directors remains in office. A Director so elected shall remain in office for the duration of the vacant term until the next annual

general meeting of the Members. The Directors shall not fill a vacancy in the manner specified in this clause during the ninety (90) day period immediately preceding an annual general or special meeting. If there is not a quorum of Directors, the remaining Directors shall forthwith call a meeting of the members to fill the vacant Director positions.

#### 12. Executive Committee

Immediately following the election of Directors, the Directors shall meet and appoint from among their number an "Executive Committee" consisting of the President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. The immediate past President shall <u>ex officio</u> be a member of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall be responsible for the day to day administration of the Corporation. The Executive Committee shall act within the terms of the policies adopted by the Corporation and within the budget for the Corporation approved by the Board of Directors.

The Past President shall perform all specific duties assigned by the President or the Executive Committee.

In addition, the Board of Directors may delegate to the Executive Committee any of the powers of the Board of Directors, subject to the restrictions, if any, contained in the By-laws, the Act, and any resolution of the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee may meet for the transaction of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings as it sees fit and may from time to time adopt, amend or appeal rules or procedures in this regard, provided, however, that if the Executive Committee is authorized to fix its quorum, such quorum shall not be less than a majority of its members. Subject to the Act, except to the extent otherwise determined by the Board of Directors or, failing such determination as determined by the Executive Committee, the provisions in this By-law respecting meetings of the Board of Directors, shall apply, with necessary modifications to the Executive Committee. Any Executive Committee member may be removed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Executive Committee members shall receive no remuneration for serving as such, but are entitled to reasonable expenses incurred in the exercise of their duty.

#### 13. Other Committees

The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint any other committee or committees, as it deems necessary or appropriate for such purposes and with such powers as the Board shall see fit. Any such committee may formulate its own rules of procedure, subject to such regulations or directions as the Board may from time to time make. A committee may include persons other than Directors. Any committee member may be removed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Appointments to such committees shall:

 (a) be for such term as the Directors may deem appropriate and shall be subject to revocation if the Directors consider it appropriate to do so;

- (b) only be open to persons who are Members of the Corporation unless otherwise authorized by the Board of Directors;
- (c) be pursuant to an undertaking between the Corporation and the appointees wherein the Corporation undertakes to indemnify the appointees pursuant to Article 37 herein and the appointees agree to report to and take direction from the Corporation regarding their activities.

#### 14. Remuneration of Directors

The Directors shall serve as such without remuneration and no Director shall directly or indirectly receive any profit from occupying the position of Director; provided however that a Director may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred by the Director in the performance of the Director's duties.

#### 15. Responsibilities of the Board

Each Board member will, without limitation:

- (a) attend Board meetings, regular and special meetings of the membership;
- (b) review agenda and supporting documents prior to Board and committee meetings;
- (c) act honestly, in good faith and be available for tasks and duties that serve the best interests and functions of the Corporation and the public;
- (d) take an active role on the Board through participation in committee work;
- (e) respect the financial policies of the Board;
- (f) review and vote on the approval of the Corporation's budget;
- (g) promote the Corporation's membership and its services;
- (h) report to the Board any material legal matter in which he or she has been named as defendant or which may constitute a conflict of interest in accordance with the manner set out in these By-laws and under the Act;
- assist in developing and maintaining positive relations among the Board, committees, staff members and community to enhance the Corporation's mission; and
- (j) ensure that the Corporation maintains appropriate statements and records and, where appropriate, ensure that notice is published for the purpose of making the membership aware that certain statements and records are available for Inspection.

#### MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

#### 16. Place of Meeting

Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held either at the head office or at any place within Ontario.

#### 17. Notice

The Secretary shall, when directed or authorized by the President of the Corporation or by any three (3) Directors, convene a meeting of Directors. The notice of meeting convened as aforesaid need not specify the purpose of or the business to be transacted at the meeting except as may be required under the Act. Notice of any such meeting shall be in writing and served not less than two (2) days (exclusive of the day on which the notice is delivered or sent but inclusive of the day for which notice is given) before the meeting is to take place; provided always that a Director may in any manner and at any time waive notice of a meeting of Directors and attendance of a Director at a meeting of Directors shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the grounds that the meeting is not lawfully called: provided further that meetings of Directors may be held at any time without notice if all the Directors are present (except where a Director attends a meeting is not lawfully called) or if all of the absent Directors waive notice before or after the date of such meeting. Notice of meetings of the Directors shall state the day, hour and place of the meeting and the general nature of the business being transacted and shall be sent either personally or by sending such notice to each Board member through the mail in the form of a letter, or by fax or e-mail to the last number or address that appears on the member list of the Corporation, or if no address be given therein, to the last address of such Board member known to the Secretary of the Corporation.

If the first meeting of the Board of Directors following the election of Directors by the members is held immediately thereafter, then for such meeting or for a meeting of the Board of Directors at which a Director is appointed to fill a vacancy in the Board, no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected or appointed Directors or Director in order to legally constitute the meeting provided that a quorum of the Directors is present.

#### 18. Error or Omission in Giving Notice

No error or accidental omission in giving notice of any meeting of Directors shall invalidate such meeting or make void any proceedings taken at such meeting.

#### 19. Adjournment

Any meeting of Directors may be adjourned from time to time by the chairperson of the

meeting, with the consent of those in attendance at the meeting, to a fixed time and place. Notice of any adjourned meeting of Directors is not required to be given if the time and place of the adjourned meeting is announced at the original meeting. Any adjourned meeting shall be duly constituted if held in accordance with the terms of the adjournment and a quorum is present thereat. The Directors who formed a quorum at the original meeting are not required to form the quorum at the adjourned meeting. If there is no quorum present at the adjourned meeting, the original meeting shall be deemed to have terminated forthwith after its adjournment. Any business may be brought before or dealt with at any adjourned meeting which might have been brought before or dealt with at the original meeting in accordance with the notice calling the same.

#### 20. Regular Meetings

The Board of Directors may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings of the Board of Directors at a place or hour to be named by the Board of Directors and a copy of any resolution of the Board of Directors fixing the place and time of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be sent to each Director forthwith after being passed, but no other notice shall be required for any such regular meetings. At least two such meetings shall be held annually, normally in October and June.

#### 21. Quorum

The number of Directors which shall form a quorum for the transaction of business shall be a majority of the Directors then in office. Notwithstanding any vacancy among the Directors, a quorum of Directors may exercise all the powers of Directors.

#### 22. Voting

Each Director is authorized to exercise one (1) vote. Questions arising at any meeting of Directors shall be decided by the majority of votes unless otherwise required by this By-law or the Act. In case of an equality of votes, the chairperson of the meeting in addition to an original vote shall have a second or casting vote, except in the case of the election of officers.

#### 23. Telephone/Electronic Participation

If all the Directors of the Corporation consent, a meeting of Directors may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other simultaneously and instantaneously, and a Director participating in such meeting by such means is deemed to be present at that meeting.

#### POWERS OF DIRECTORS

#### 24. Administer Affairs

The Board of Directors of the Corporation may administer the affairs of the Corporation in all things and make or cause to be made for the Corporation, in its name, any kind of contract which the Corporation may lawfully enter into and, save as hereinafter provided, generally, may exercise all such other powers and do all such other acts and things as the Corporation is by its Letter Patent or otherwise authorized to exercise and do.

#### 25. Expenditure

The Board of Directors shall have power to authorize expenditures on behalf of the Corporation from time to time and may delegate, by resolution to the Executive Committee or to an officer or officers of the Corporation, the right to employ and pay salaries to employees. The Board of Directors shall have the power to make expenditures for the purpose of furthering the objects of the Corporation.

#### 26. Borrowing Power

The Board of Directors of the Corporation may from time to time:

- (a) borrow money on the credit of the Corporation;
- issue, sell or pledge debt obligations (including bonds, debentures, debenture stock, notes or other like liabilities whether secured or unsecured) of the Corporation;
- (c) charge, mortgage, hypothecate or pledge all or any currently owned or subsequently acquired real or personal, movable or immovable property of the Corporation, including book debts, rights, powers, franchise and undertakings, to secure any debt obligations or any money borrowed, or other debt or liability of the Corporation; and
- (d) delegate the powers conferred on the Board of Directors under this article to the Executive Committee or such officer or officers of the Corporation and to such extent and in such manner as the Directors shall determine in accordance with the Act.

The powers hereby conferred shall be deemed to be in supplement of the and not in substitution for any powers to borrow money for the purposes of the Corporation possessed by its Directors or officers independently of this By-law.

#### 27. Fees and Fund Raising

The establishment of or changes to the membership fees and dues and any special

assessments must be approved by a vote of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall take such steps as they may deem requisite to enable the Corporation to acquire, accept, solicit or receive legacies, gifts, grants, settlements, bequests, endowments and donations of any kind whatsoever for the purpose of furthering the objects of the Corporation.

#### 28. Agents and Employees

The Board of Directors may appoint such agents and engage such employees as it shall deem necessary from time to time and such persons shall have authority and shall perform such duties as shall be prescribed by the Board of Directors at the time of such appointment.

#### 29. Remuneration of Agents and Employees

The remuneration of agents, employees and committee members shall, subject to the other provisions of this By-law, be fixed by the Executive Committee.

#### **OFFICERS**

#### 30. Appointment

The Board of Directors shall annually appoint immediately following the election of the Board a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer from among themselves and, if deemed advisable, may appoint one or more additional officers. Only Directors may be appointed to the office of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer and they must remain Directors and Members of the Corporation in order to hold such office. No Director shall hold more than one such office at any one time. The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint such other officers and agents as it shall deem necessary who shall have such authority and shall perform such duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

#### 31. Vacancies

Notwithstanding the foregoing, each incumbent officer shall continue in office until the earlier of:

- (a) that officer's resignation, which resignation shall be effective at the time the written resignation is received by the Secretary of the Corporation or at the time specified in the resignation, whichever is later;
- (b) the appointment of a successor;
- that officer ceasing to be a Director or Member if such is a necessary qualification of appointment;

- (d) that officer's removal;
- (e) that officer's death.

If the office of any officer of the Corporation shall be or become vacant, the Directors by resolution may appoint an eligible person to fill such vacancy.

#### 32. Remuneration of Officers

The Directors may fix the remuneration of the officers of the Corporation, provided however those officers who are also Directors are not entitled to receive remuneration by reason of holding their office. Notwithstanding this, officers are entitled to be reimbursed from the Corporation for reasonable expenses incurred in carrying out his or her duties as an officer of the Corporation.

#### 33. Removal of Officers

All officers, in the absence of agreement of the contrary, shall be subject to removal by resolution of the Board of Directors at any time, with or without cause.

#### 34. Duties of Officers may be Delegated

In case of the absence or inability to act of any officer of the Corporation or for any other reason that the Board of Directors may deem sufficient, the Board of Directors may delegate all or any of the powers of any such officer to any other officer or to any Director for the time being.

#### 35. Current Offices and Powers and Duties

All officers shall sign such contracts, documents or instruments in writing as require their respective signatures and shall have and perform all powers and duties incident to their respective offices and such other powers and duties as may from time to time be assigned to them by the Board of Directors. The current offices of the Corporation and the duties of such offices include:

#### (a) President

The President shall be responsible for the overall supervision and administration of the Corporation. The President shall chair all meetings of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee and meetings of Members, prepare the agenda for meetings of the Board and of the Executive Committee in consultation with the Secretary and ensure that policies and directives of the Board are implemented.

#### (b) Vice- President

The Vice-President shall be vested with all the powers and shall perform all the duties of

the President in the absence or inability or refusal to act of the President.

#### (c) Secretary

The Secretary shall give or cause to be given notices for all meetings of the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee, and members when directed to do so and have charge of the corporate seal of the Corporation, the minute books of the Corporation and of the documents and registers referred to in the Act. The Secretary shall also be responsible for circulating minutes, agendas for Board of Director and Executive Committee meetings, communication with membership, and maintaining membership information.

#### (d) Treasurer

Subject to the provisions of any resolution of the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all the funds and securities of the Corporation and shall deposit the same in the name of the Corporation in such bank or banks or with such depository or depositories as the Board of Directors may direct. The Treasurer shall keep or cause to be kept the requisite books of account and accounting records, to report to the Board of Directors and Executive Committee on finances as requested by the Board or Executive Committee, and to present the financial report to the annual general meeting of the Corporation. The Treasurer may be required to give such bond for the faithful performance of the Treasurer's duties as the Board of Directors in their uncontrolled discretion may require but no Director shall be liable for failure to require any bond or for the insufficiency of any bond or for any loss by reason of the failure of the Corporation to receive any indemnity thereby provided.

#### (e) Executive Director

The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint an Executive Director who is not a member of the Board of Directors and may delegate to that person full power to manage and direct the business and affairs of the Corporation (except such matters and duties as by law must be transacted or performed by the Board of Directors and/or by the members) and to employ and discharge agents and employees of the Corporation or may delegate to that person any lesser authority. The Executive Director shall conform to all lawful orders given by the Board of Directors of the Corporation and shall at all reasonable times give to the Directors or any of them all information they may require regarding the affairs of the Corporation.

#### FOR THE PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

#### 36. For the Protection of Directors and Officers

Except as otherwise provided in the Act, no Director or officer of the Corporation shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other Director or officer or employee or for any loss, damage or expense happening to the Corporation through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired by the Corporation or for on behalf of the Corporation or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which any of the moneys of or belonging to the Corporation shall be placed out or invested or for any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any person including any person with whom any moneys, securities or effects shall be lodged or deposited or for any loss, conversion, misapplication or misappropriation of or any damage resulting from any dealings with any moneys, securities or other assets belonging to the Corporation or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatever which may happen in the execution of the duties of the Director's or officer's respective office or trust or in relation thereto unless the same shall happen by or through the Director's own willful neglect or default.

#### INDEMNITIES TO DIRECTORS AND OTHERS

#### 37. Indemnities to Directors and Others

Every Director or officer of the Corporation or other person who has undertaken or is about to undertake any liability on behalf of the Corporation or any corporation controlled by it and their heirs, executors and administrators, and estate and effects, respectively, shall from time to time and at all times, be indemnified and saved harmless out of the funds of the Corporation, from and against:

- (a) all costs, charges and expenses whatsoever which such Director, officer or other person sustains or incurs in or about any action, suit or proceeding that is brought, commenced or prosecuted against the Director, officer or other person for or in respect of any act, deed matter or thing whatever, made done or permitted by them, in or about the execution of the duties of such office or in respect of any such liability; and
- (b) all other costs, charges and expenses which the Director, officer or other person sustains or incurs in or about or in relation to the affairs thereof, except such costs, charges or expenses as are occasioned by their own willful neglect or default.

The Corporation shall also indemnify any such person in such other circumstances as the Act or law permit or requires, including any person appointed under Article 28 hereof. Nothing in this By-law shall limit the right of any person entitled to indemnity to claim indemnity apart from the provisions of this By-law to the extent permitted by the Act or

law

#### INTERESTED DIRECTOR CONTRACTS

#### 38. Conflict of Interest

A Director who is in any way directly or indirectly interested in a contract or proposed contract with the Corporation shall make the disclosure of such interest in accordance with the provisions herein and as required the Act. No such Director shall vote on any resolution to approve any such contract. In supplement of and not by way of limitation upon any rights conferred upon Directors by the Act, it is declared that no Director shall be disqualified from, or vacate any such office by reason of holding any office or place of profit under the Corporation or under any corporation in which the Corporation shall be a shareholder or by reason of being otherwise in any way directly or indirectly interested or contracting with the Corporation as vendor, purchaser or otherwise or being concerned in any contract or arrangement made or proposed to be entered into with the Corporation in which the Director is in any way directly or indirectly interested as vendor, purchaser or otherwise. Subject to compliance with the Act, no contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation in which any Director shall be in any way directly or indirectly interested shall be voided or voidable and no Director shall be liable to account to the Corporation or any of its member or creditors for any profit realized by or for any such contract or arrangement by reason of any fiduciary relationship.

#### 39. Submission of Contracts or Transactions to Members for Approval

The Board of Directors in its discretion may submit any contract, act or transaction with the Corporation for approval or ratification at any annual meeting of the Members or at any meeting of the Members called for the purpose of considering the same and, subject to the provisions of the Act, any such contract, act or transaction that shall be approved or ratified or confirmed by a resolution passed by a majority of the votes cast at any such meeting (unless any different or additional requirement is imposed by he Act or by the Letters Patent) shall be as valid and as binding upon the Corporation and upon all the Members as though it had been approved, ratified or confirmed by every member of the Corporation.

#### **MEMBERS**

#### 40. Classes of Members and Eligibility

Regular membership (an individual in this classification shall be referred to as a "Regular Member") in the Corporation is open to a full time or part time employee or a contractor of an OCAAT engaged to perform an administrative type of function who is accepted for membership by the Board of Directors except:

(i) those who are employed as college presidents;

(ii) those who are members of or are eligible to become members of a "bargaining unit" as defined in Section 1 of the Colleges Collective Bargaining Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. C15, or successor legislation, including without limitation, those who, if they were employed on a full time basis, would fall within this exclusion;

#### 41. Application for Membership

Applications for membership shall be addressed to the head office of the Corporation. Members in good standing shall be those persons who are eligible for membership and who are at least 18 years of age and have paid all required fees and assessments to the Corporation. Members whose fees or assessments are in arrears may be required by the Committee to pay an administrative fee for reinstatement of membership in good standing. Only a Member in good standing shall have the right to:

- (a) attend and participate at meetings of the Corporation;
- (b) be informed of matters of interest to the membership;
- (c) seek and hold office in the Corporation;
- (d) vote on any matters, subject to any restrictions set out in these By-laws; and
- (e) serve as an appointed or elected official representative of the Corporation, subject to any restrictions set out in these By-laws.

#### 42. Resignation

Any Member may withdraw from the Corporation by delivering to the Corporation a written resignation and lodging a copy of same with the Secretary of the Corporation. A resignation shall be effective from acceptance thereof by the Board of Directors. In the case of resignation, a Member shall remain liable for payment of any outstanding membership dues levied or which became payable by the Member of the Corporation prior to such person's resignation. The Board may approve in its absolute discretion a refund of all or a portion of dues or fees paid by a Member who has resigned. A Member whose dues remain unpaid for six months shall be deemed to have resigned.

#### 43. Termination of Membership Status

The interest of a Member in the Corporation is not transferable and lapses and ceases to exist:

(a) upon death of the Member;

- (b) when the Member ceases to be a Member by reason of ineligibility, resignation or otherwise in accordance with these By-laws;
- (c) if at a special meeting Members, a resolution is passed to remove the Member by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast at the special meeting provided that the Member in question shall be granted the opportunity to be heard at such meeting in accordance with any requirements set out in the Act.

#### **MEMBERS' MEETINGS**

#### 44. Annual Meeting

Subject to compliance with the Act, the annual meeting of the Members shall be held on such day in each year and at such time as the Directors may by resolution determine at any place within Ontario or, in the absence of such determination, at the place where the head office of the Corporation is located for the purpose of:

- (a) Considering and approving the minutes of the previous annual meeting and any special general meeting that may have been held since the last annual meeting;
- (b) Receiving and considering audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year;
- (c) Receiving and considering such other reports and statements as are required by the Act and any other applicable legislation;
- (d) Electing Directors;
- (e) Appointing the auditors for the next fiscal year; and
- (f) Transacting any other business properly brought before the meeting

#### 45. Other Meetings

Other meetings of the Members may be convened by order of the President or by the Board of Directors or upon a written request signed by at least 10% of the voting Members and stipulating the purpose of the meeting and the proposed date, time and place of such meeting or, in the absence of such determination, at the place where the head office of the Corporation is located.

#### 46. Notice

A minimum of twenty-one (21) days' written notice shall be given to each Member of any annual or special meeting of Members. Notice of any meeting where special business will be transacted should contain sufficient information to permit the Member to

form a reasoned judgment on the decision to be taken. A written notice stating the day, hour, and place of the meeting and the general nature of the business being transacted shall be sent either personally or by sending such notice to each member through the mail in the form of a letter, in the Corporation's newsletter, or by e-mail to the last address that appears on the member list of the Corporation, or if no address be given therein, to the last address of such Member known to the Secretary of the Corporation.

#### 47. Waiver of Notice

A Member and any other person entitled to attend a meeting of Members may in any manner waive notice of a meeting of Members and attendance of any such person at a meeting of Members shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting except where such person attends a meeting for the express purposes of objecting to the transaction of any business on the grounds that the meeting is not lawfully called.

#### 48. Error or Omission in Giving Notice

No error or omission in giving notice of any such annual or special meeting of the Members or any adjourned meeting of the Members of the Corporation shall invalidate any resolution passed or any proceedings taken at any meeting of the Members.

#### 49. Quorum

A quorum at any meeting of the Members shall be 13 voting Members present and voting in person. No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless the requisite quorum is present at the time of the transaction of such business. If a quorum is not present at the time appointed for a meeting of Members or within such reasonable time thereafter as the Members present may determine, the persons present who are entitled to vote may adjourn the meeting to a fixed time and place but may not transact any other business.

#### 50. Chairperson of the Meeting

In the event that the President is absent and the Vice-President is also absent, the persons who are present and entitled to vote shall choose another Director as chairperson of the meeting and if no Director is present or if all the Directors present decline to take the chair, then the persons who are present and entitled to vote shall choose one of their number to be chairperson.

#### 51. Adjournment

The chairperson of any meeting may with the consent of the meeting adjourn the same from time to time to a fixed time and place and no notice of such adjournment need be given to Members. Any business may be brought before or dealt with at any adjourned meeting which might have been brought before or dealt with at the original meeting in accordance with the notice calling the same.

#### 52. Voting of Members

Every question submitted to any meeting of Members shall be decided in the first instance on a show of hands by a majority of votes unless otherwise specifically provided by the Act or by these by-laws. In the case of any equality of votes the chairperson of the meeting shall both on a show of hands and at a poll have a second or casting vote in addition to the vote or votes to which the chairperson may be otherwise entitled. At any meeting unless a poll is demanded, a declaration by the chairperson of the meeting that a resolution has been carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majority or lost or not carried by a particular majority shall be conclusive evidence of the fact. A poll may be demanded either before or after any vote by show of hands by a person entitled to vote at the meeting. If at any meeting a poll is demanded on the election of a chairperson or on the question of adjournment it shall be taken forthwith without adjournment. If at any meeting a poll is demanded on any other question or as to the election of Directors, the vote shall be taken by ballot in such manner and either at once, later in the meeting or after adjournment as the person of the meeting directs. The result of a poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. A demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

#### 53. Proxies

- (a) Every Member entitled to vote at a meeting of the Members may by means of a proxy appoint a proxy holder or one or more alternate proxy holders, who need not be Members, as the Member's nominee to attend and act at the meeting in the manner, to the extent and with the authority conferred by the proxy. Every proxy must be in a form that complies with the Act and any prescribed regulations thereof.
- (b) The Directors may by resolution fix a time not exceeding 48 hours, excluding Saturdays and holidays, before any meeting or continuance of an adjourned meeting of the Members before which time proxies to be used at that meeting must be deposited with the Corporation or an agent of the Corporation, and any period of time so fixed must be specified in the notice calling the meeting.

#### CUSTODY AND VOTING OF SHARES AND SECURITIES

#### 54. Voting Shares and Securities

All of the shares or other securities carrying voting rights of any company or corporation held from time to time by the Corporation may be voted at any and all meetings of shareholders, bondholders, debenture holders or holders of other securities (as the case may be) of such company or corporation and in such manner and by such person or persons as the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall from time to time determine. The duly authorized signing officers of the Corporation may also from time to time execute and deliver for and on behalf of Corporation proxies and/or arrange for the issuance of voting certificates and/or other evidence of the right to vote in such names as they may

determine without the necessity of a resolution or other action by the Board of Directors.

#### 55. Custody of Securities

All shares and securities owned by the Corporation shall be lodged (in the name of the Corporation) with a chartered bank or a trust company or in a safety deposit box or, if so authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors, with such other depositories or in such other manner as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.

All share certificate, bonds, debentures, notes or other obligations belonging to the Corporation may be issued or held in the name of a nominee or nominees of the Corporation (and if issued or held in the names of more than one nominee shall be held in the names of the nominees jointly with the right of survivorship) and shall be endorsed in blank with endorsement guaranteed in order to enable transfer to be completed and registered to be effected.

#### **EXECUTION AND INSTRUMENTS**

#### 56. Execution of Instruments

Contracts, documents, cheques or instruments in writing requiring the signature of the Corporation must be signed by a designated signing officer or officers as provided in this Article. The Board of Directors shall appoint up to four (4) of it members at least three of whom must also be members of the Executive Committee as signing officers. Senior administrative staff of the Corporation may also be appointed as additional designated signing officers. Contracts, documents, cheques or other instruments in the amount of \$1000 or less and normal payroll-related amounts such as net pay and statutory remittances made in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by any one (1) designated signing officer. Contracts, documents, cheques or other instruments in the amount of \$1001 or more made in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by any two (2) designated signing officers, at least one of whom must be a member of the Executive Committee.

All contracts, documents and instruments in writing so signed shall be binding upon the Corporation without any further authorization or formality. The Board of Directors shall have power from time to time by resolution to appoint any officer or officers or any person or persons on behalf of the Corporation either to sign contracts, documents and instruments in writing generally to sign specific contracts, documents or instruments in writing.

The term "contracts, documents or instruments in writing" as used in the By-law shall include but not be limited to deeds, mortgages, hypothecs, charges, conveyances, transfers and assignments of property real or personal, immovable or movable, agreements, releases, receipts and discharges for the payment of money or other obligations, conveyances, transfers and assignments of shares, share warrants, stocks, bonds, debentures or other securities and all paper writings.

The seal of the Corporation when required may be affixed to any instruments in writing signed as aforesaid or by any officer or officers appointed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

#### **NOTICES**

#### 57. Service

Any notice or other document required by the Letters Patent, the By-laws or the Act to be sent to any member or Director or to the auditor shall be delivered personally or sent by prepaid mail or by telegram, cable, facsimile, email or other electronic means to any such Member, Director or auditor at their latest address as shown in the records of the Corporation and to the auditor at its business address, or if no address be given therein then to the last address of such Member, Director, or auditor known to the Secretary; provided always that notice may be waived or the time for the notice may be waived or abridged at any time with the consent in writing of the person entitled thereto.

#### 58. Signature to Notices

The signature of any Director or officer of the Corporation to any notice or document to be given under the By-laws, letters patent or supplementary letters patent of the Corporation may be written, stamped, typewritten or partly written, stamped, typewritten.

#### 59. Computation of Time

Where a given number of day's notice or notice extending over a period is required to be given under the Letters Patent, By-laws, or the Act, the day of service or posting of the notice shall not, unless it is otherwise provided be counted in such number of days or other period.

#### 60. Proof of Service

With respect to every notice or other document sent by post it shall be sufficient to prove that the envelope or wrapper containing the notice or other document was properly addressed and put into a Post Office or into a letter box. A certificate of any officer of the Corporation in office at the time of the making of the certificate as to facts in relation to the sending or delivery of any notice or other document to any Member, Director, officer or auditor or publication of any notice or other document shall be conclusive evidence thereof and shall be binding on every Member, Director, officer or auditor of the Corporation as the case may be.

#### **AUDITORS**

30

#### 61. Auditors

The Members shall at each annual meeting appoint an auditor to audit the accounts of the Corporation of report of Members who shall hold office until the next following annual meeting; provided, however, that the Directors may fill any casual vacancy in the office of the auditor. If an appointment is not so made, the auditor in office must continue until a successor is appointed. The remuneration of the auditor shall be fixed by the Members or by the remuneration of auditor appointed by the Directors shall be fixed by the Directors. The Members may by resolution passed by at least two-thirds of the votes cast at a general meeting of which notice of intention to pass the resolution has been given, remove any auditor before the expiration of the auditor's term of office and shall by a majority of the votes cast at that meeting appoint another auditor in such auditor's stead for the remainder of the term.

#### FINANCIAL YEAR

#### 62. Financial Year

The financial year of the Corporation shall terminate on the 31<sup>st</sup> day of December in each year on or such other date as the Directors may from time to time by resolution determine.

#### 63. Enactment, Repeal and Amendment of By-laws and Special Resolutions

By-laws of the Corporation may be enacted, and the by-laws of the Corporation repealed or amended, by by-law enacted by at a least majority of the Directors present at a meeting of the Board and sanctioned by at least a majority of the Members present at a meeting of Members duly called for the purpose of considering such by-law or at the next annual meeting of Members. The repeal or amendment of a by-law of the Corporation may be enforced or acted upon unless the approval of the members is required under the Act before it may be enforced or acted upon. A copy of any by-law proposed to be sanctioned at an annual or general meeting of Members (including a by-law which amends or repeals an existing by-law) shall be sent to every Member of the Corporation with the notice of such meeting. Such by-law may be amended at the meeting provided a majority of Directors present approve any amendment moved at such meeting of Members. Where the Act or these by-laws requires that a matter be dealt with by way of Special Resolution, such Special Resolution must be passed by a majority of Directors and confirmed with or without variation by at least 2/3 of the votes cast at a meeting of Members called for that purpose, or, alternatively, the written consent of all Members entitled to vote at such meeting.

OCASA: BY-LAW 1
-----------------

#### 64. Rules of Order

Except where the bylaws otherwise, the Association shall be governed in all procedural matters by <u>Roberts Rules of Order</u>, Newly Revised, by General Henry M. Robert, Scott Foresman, A Division of Harper Collins Publishers, 1990, 9th Edition, or later editions.

Enacted by the Board the day of	, 2013 and confirmed and passed by the
Members in accordance with the Act on	the day of, 2013.
	Secretary

COMMITTEE	CHAIR	STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT	KEY SUCCESSES/UPDATES	ISSUES FOR DISCUSSION			
BOARD COMMITTEES							
Mentorship Steering Committee (sub-committee of PD)	Interim: Diane Posterski	<ul><li>Leadership</li><li>Professional Excellence</li></ul>	Pilot course has been developed and is being floated amongst 34 targeted members for feedback. It is aimed at seasoned administrators. See attachment for current overview.  2.	Only six people enrolled though others expressed interest. The decision was made to run the course possibly in the fall, and survey members for interest. Those enrolled in spring are prepared to take course in the fall.			
Member Engagement	Diane Posterski	<ul><li>Community Building</li><li>Sustainability</li></ul>	See meeting notes and draft proposal for Fall Webinar Series.	Agreement in principal for next steps.			
Finance/Audit	Treasurer: Bridget Woodcock	Sustainability	Small committee is now formed.     Focusing on revenue diversification.	Still need potential contacts and business ideas.  Will include educational institutions identified in Education profile.			
Governance	Rick Helman	Sustainability	1. Bylaws are ready for member approval once the Board has confirmed the final draft. The enforcement of the new legislation has been delayed to January 1, 2014.	Confirm draft for membership vote.			
STAFF COMMITTEES							
Conference Planning	Diane Posterski	<ul><li>Leadership,</li><li>Professional excellence</li><li>Community building</li></ul>	Final details are being covered by the office.	Registration is lower at this point with early bird registration ending May 17. As of May 11, registration is at 54. This number does not include facilitators and resource people.			

Committee Work updates February 21, 2013 Board of Directors

COMMITTEE	CHAIR	STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT	KEY SUCCESSES/UPDATES	ISSUES FOR DISCUSSION
Awards Committee	Susan Atkinson	<ul><li>Professional excellence</li><li>Community building</li></ul>	Nominations have been received and are being reviewed by the committee May 16,	Motion should be confirmed by the board endorsing the modifications of the awards:
Editorial Board	Interim: Diane Posterski	<ul> <li>Leadership</li> <li>Professional excellence</li> <li>Community building</li> <li>Advocacy</li> <li>Sustainability</li> </ul>	Great discussion about turning     "College Administrator" into the     information and news hub/brand for     OCASA, moving to a digital platform.	See attached meeting notes for overview.  Agreement in principle for this direction will be needed.
Research Working Group	Diane Posterski	<ul> <li>Leadership</li> <li>Professional excellence</li> <li>Community building</li> <li>Advocacy</li> <li>Sustainability</li> </ul>	Education profile survey and report completed.	Discussion now focuses on next steps in response to survey results. How do we help members learn more about educational pathways and support them in this undertaking?  Who should work on this?

## OCASA Member Engagement - Working Group Meeting Notes

Thursday, April 18

Present: Krista Pearson, Sault Kim Lair, Cambrian Riley Burton, Confederation Chad Munday, Loyalist Diane Posterski, OCASA

Regrets: Chair: Dave Belford, Fanshawe Rob Kardas, Lambton

#### Agenda item

- 1. Welcome: Chad and Riley were welcomed to the committee. Diane chaired the meeting.
- 2. Blog concept from previous meeting is this the best format? Should we survey a targeted group? Where should our focus be and what information do we still need?

#### **Key discussion areas:**

- Review of "what new managers want" survey supports topics already addressed in certification; also supports desire for expertise and navigating a college career. This informs us about where to start.
- Engaging members that have already joined is the goal; this discussion is less about attracting new members; by engaging active members, this will support recruitment. We already know that some members have invited non-members to view a webinar.
- It would help to have an overall profile about our membership.
- Value of blog versus webinar:
  - Webinar is a tool we're already using with a fair amount of success: noon hour seems to work, they are accessible from anywhere, and they are recorded for future viewing; and it is cost effective.
  - A Blog would introduce a new tool requiring more pull from members. We might put this on hold and focus on developing webinars
- This is less about building community and more about imparting information (community building could be brought in as a feature)
- Budget: we will try to generate volunteers in the system; but will also consider partners with the certification program.
- Companion materials should accompany the webinar, and sent to participants. So those that want to receive materials should identify themselves.
- A series of webinars indicating level of experience (newer admin; experienced admin) should be developed
- 3. Next steps:
  - Put together a one-page proposal for a webinar series in fall of 2013, indicating format, topics and resources required.
  - Set up next committee meeting for May
- 4. Adjournment: 11:50 am

Draft/Working Proposal April 18, 2013 – drafted by Diane Posterski following the meeting *For discussion purposes at the next meeting* 

### **Member Engagement Task Force**

Overall Goal: to engage more members in OCASA services/products in support of member satisfaction, retention, and fulfilling OCASA's mandate.

#### **Proposal**

Product: Monthly webinar series for members starting Fall 2013

<u>Target group:</u> Still some discussion here - any member? Greater number for newer managers with a couple of high level ones identified for experienced managers?

We might do better to package it and market with a specific segment in mind

i.e. Webinar series Managers tool kit: primer and refresher

We can still offer higher-level webinars, but marketed separately?

#### **Description:**

- One hour webinars at noon
- Monthly series around management tools/issues
- Tagged as being for novice or experienced admin
- Dependent largely on volunteer experts
- "one-way" webinars with Q & A option in typing block (no video/voice for participants)

#### Other supports:

- Companion resources (web links, articles, list of people in system with expertise?)
- List of those in attendance
- Certificate indicating participation (similar to what we give at the conference) emailed following webinar

#### Procedures:

- pre-registration is not required; accessed through members services area of website
- attendance should be tracked for information, follow-up and member tracking
- members only, unless invited by a member to share viewing

#### Resources required:

- Adobe Connect is current platform (web-based) (annual flat fee)
- Presenters must have access to high speed with guaranteed bandwidth
- Expert presenters in system/partners; might require some funding for outside partners
- Clerical time to ensure follow up

#### Next steps:

- 1. Confirm proposal take to Board May 15
- 2. Determine costs
- 3. Generate topics
- 4. Confirm delivery dates
- 5. Launch/announcement during Conference?

# COLLEGE ADMINISTRATOR Editorial Board May 2, 2013 Meeting Notes

Committee Members			
Diane Posterski, Executive Director (Chair)			
Louise Chatterton Luchuk, St. Lawrence College	Regrets:		
Gregory Murphy, Durham College	Susan Atkinson, Sheridan College		
Resource: Bill Swan, Retiree, Communications Consultant	Rick Webb, Sault College		

#### **Agenda**

1. Future directions for College Administrator

A great conversation (!), visioning and strategizing about *College Administrator* (the banner brand) being an information/news hub of Ontario college administrators (but not limited to), with growth in the digital platform.

#### Discussion threads:

- Content: is paramount, must be reliable, and consistent
- We need to build "assets" that are mobile across evolving platforms
- Editorial strategy needs to be developed (i.e. schedule, content)
- Where does the value of information lie; how do we assign resources moving forward; we need to move incrementally
- Crowd source: We will likely need to build a team of "asset builders" or "intelligence" who are using these platforms, can help generate and forward content to us.
- Are there alliances to draw synergies from (i.e. Academica)?
- All media formats need to be integrated and feed into overall strategy
- Print publication may very well fall away: digital format needs to be in place to replace the print when this happens (do we keep a publication with an app? Or just move to website presence)? Right now we generate revenue from this source which helps to cover the costs of contributing editor.
- Website: holds longer articles, research, photo diary, video links
   News Picks: sends out key current news
   Twitter: might link to articles online consistent with news of the day; highlight
   each of the news picks that week; about news of that day

#### Next steps:

- 1. Develop a one page discussion piece for the conference invite discussion, working document; discover people interested in working on this project
- 2. Do an inventory of information communications we currently deliver, and those we wish we could deliver. Itemize how they are or ought to be sent, look for trends in content types; frequency; themes; member/non-member delivery. Use this information to help build an editorial strategy.

# COLLEGE ADMINISTRATOR Editorial Board May 2, 2013 Meeting Notes

- 2. Fall Story ideas: We developed a quick theme around "job seeking" in Ontario colleges:
  - Interview Howard Rundle leaving colleges after 40+ years (when he became President he had to layoff 200 people); video interview an opportunity here as well
  - Article: Career Corner: ask Brian Desbiens to invite Jordene Lyttle of Promeus to write an article: who's being hired & why?
  - Article: invite Deb McCarthy (VP HR, Humber) how do candidates need to better
    prepare themselves for the job search process, including interview preparation,
    interview skills and follow-up (many candidates are ill-prepared for interviews,
    including college administrators; experience in a role is no longer enough)
  - Sidebar: What has OCASA observed through job posting trends? Where are jobs turning over (divisions/colleges); what are the new positions emerging? What jobs aren't being filled? This webpage is the most visited on the OCASA website.
- 3. Review of design ideas: this wasn't discussed at all.
- 4. Administration: next meeting TBA



**FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

# Douglas R. Freeman, B.A., C.A.

#### **Chartered Accountant**



511 Bond Street West, Oshawa, Ontario L1J 2M2 Tel: (905) 576-4619 Fax: (905) 576-9154

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



To The Members of:

Ontario College Administrative Staff Association/Association du Personnel Administratif des Colleges de L'Ontario.

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ontario College Administrative Staff Association/Association de Personnel Administratif des Colleges de L'Ontario which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 the statements of revenues and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bassis for my audit opinion.

#### Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the company as at December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 the results of its operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit organizations.

Douglas R. Freeman, Chartered Accountant Licensed Public Accountant April 26, 2013 Oshawa, Ontario

# STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES

# DRAFT

# FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

	<u>2012</u>	<u>2011</u>
Revenue		
Memberships	\$ 192,466	\$ 188,307
Interest Income	. 66	32
Other	50,955	63,311
	243,487	251,650
Expenses (Schedule A)		
Recruitment Expenses	3,098	2,694
Communication Expenses	18,015	21,914
Member Service Expenses	61,773	63,961
Administration Expenses	155,546	165,532
	238,432	254,101
Excess Revenue (Deficit) Over Expense For The Year	5,055	(2,451)
Opening Surplus	26,487	28,938
Closing Surplus	\$ 31,542	\$ 26,487

# DRAFT

# SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

# FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(SCHEDULE A)	<u>2012</u>	<u>2011</u>
Recruitment Expenses		
Recruitment Fund Printing and Mailing	\$ 2,054 1,044	\$ 1,444 1,250
	\$ 3,098	\$ 2,694
Communication Expenses		
Translation General Consulting Website	\$ 935 2,812 10,200 4,068	\$ 5,070 2,401 9,312 5,131
	\$ 18,015	\$ 21,914
Membership Services Expenses		
Excellence Awards PD Conference AGM Legal Consultation Services Professional Development	\$ 2,256 42,764 5,567 8,454 2,732	\$ 3,108 47,756 5,043 6,386 1,668
	\$ 61,773	\$ 63,961
Administration Expenses		
Telephone/Fax Bank Charges Audit Fees Printing Postage/Courier Wages and Benefits Office Supplies and Equipment Travel and Mileage Rent Legal Fees Miscellaneous Administrative	\$ 5,493 404 2,373 2,254 1,780 122,628 4,940 4,452 7,017 1,581 2,624	\$ 5,394 335 2,507 4,838 1,696 121,062 5,711 11,474 7,017 2,419 3,079
	\$ 155,546	\$ 165,532

# DRAFT

# STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Signature

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012	As At December 31, 2012	As At December 31, 2011	As At January 1, 2011	
ASSETS				
Current				
Bank Investments (Note 2) Accrued Receivable Prepaid Expenses	\$ 12,365 5,146 17,617 6,442	\$ 6,974 5,081 16,712 9,381	\$ 3,054 5,056 28,566 6,835	
	\$ 41,570	\$ 38,148	\$ 43,511	
<u>LIABILITIES</u> Current				
Accounts Payable and Accrued Charges	\$ 10,028	\$ 11,661	\$ 14,573	
CAPITAL				
Surplus	31,542	26,487	28,938	
	\$ 41,570	\$ 38,148	\$ 43,511	
Approved on Behalf of the Board:  Signature Date				
Dignature Date				

Date



#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

#### 1. Incorporation/Purpose

The Organization was incorporated on September 30, 2008 for the purpose of pursuing and fostering the interests of its members as employees of Ontario Colleges by developing proficiency and professional excellence, developing and presenting a common position of issues and achieving through negotiation the best possible terms and conditions of employment.

#### 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Effective January 1, 2011, The Organization adopted the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook - Accounting, electing to adopt the new accounting framework: Part III - Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations. These are The Organization's first financial statements prepared in accordance with these accounting standards for not-for-profit which has been applied retrospectively. The accounting policies set out in the following significant accounting policy note have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 and in the preparation of an opening Part III statement of financial position at January 1, 2011 (The Organization's date of transition).

#### 3. Investments

The Organization's short term investments consist of the following:

Issue	Maturity			
Date	Date	Rate	2012	2011
May 27, 2012	May 28, 2013	1.55%	\$5,146	\$5,081

#### 4. Financial Instruments

The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, investments, accounts payable and accruals. Unless otherwise noted, it is the directors opinion that the Organization is not exposed to significant interest rate or credit risks arising from its financial instruments, and that the fair values of its financial instruments approximate their carrying value.